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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders

Middle East Healthcare Company
A Saudi Joint Stock Company
Teddah — Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Reporl on the Audil of the consolidated Financial Statements
Qpinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Middle East Healthcare
Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements from (1) to (28), including 2 summary of significant
accounling policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements, taken as whole:

- Present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Middle East Healthcare
Company {A Saudi Joint Stock Company) as of December 31, 2017 and the results of its
operations ard its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Asabia by
Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA) and other standards and
pronouncements endorsed by SOCPA.

- comply with the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and by-laws of
the Company in so far as they affect the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements.

Basis for Opinicn

We conducted our audit in sccordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (1SA) as endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilitles for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We belleve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis for our opinion,
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Key Audit Matters (RCAMs)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the currenl year. These matters wer2 addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, For each key audit matter, a deseription
of how our audit addressed the matter is set out below:

Revenue recognition

The Company recognized revenue of SR 1,629 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
(SR.1,616 million for the year ended 31 December 2016).

Revenue represents medical services provided to inpatients and outpatients, retail pharmacy,
sale of medical tools and instrements end revenue from ancilliary services. The company
recognizes revenue upon performance of a medical and trading service and is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable after allowing a reduction for the trade
discounts to the patients and customers.

Revenue recognition is considered to be a key audit matter since revenue is a key element of
the company"s business. There is potential risks of error and misstatements related to revenue
recognition in accordance with the Intemational Standards on Auditing, as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

We have designed our audit procedures to deal with this KAM through:

iy Preliminary risk assessment procedure that includes considering the appropriation of
revenue recognition as per the company’s polices those relating to and assessing
compliance with applicable accounting standards.

ii) Identification of risks and relevant assertions by understanding the nature of the
company's activity and its environment and documentation related to revenue.

iliy A test of key control procedures was conducted fo ensure the design, implementation
and activation of intemnal control procedures.

iv) Design sudit procedures in accordance with the results of the risk assessment
procedures.

v} Verified on a test basis, from involces and claims issued by the company, Evaluating the
contractual discounts arrangements with key customer by re-caleulating the discounts
awarded to such customers and also by agreeing the same with financial information used
for the consolidated financial statements.

vi) Implemented detailed analytical procedures to understand that the reasons for the
variation in revenues compared with the last year that had a logical basis for the business,
and the appropriateness_of the company’s accounting policies for revenue recognition
were assessed in consideration of the requirements of relevant accounting standards.

The Company's accounting policies related to revenue recognition are disclosed in Note
(2.3.14) to the financial statements.



2. Accounls recelvable

The company's accounts recelvables balance was SR 1,138 milllon as of December 31,2017
(SR 1,146 million es of December 31,2016).

For significant account balances this estimation of the collectible amount is performed on an
individual basls,

Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed
collectively and a fixed provision policy applied according to the length of the time that the
amount is past due.

We considered impairment of the accounts receivable as key audit matter due to the fixed
provisioning policy for rejection, discounts, bad and doubt full debts that is material to the
performance of the company's assels.

Our procedures included the following:

i) Considering the appropriateness of impairment of accounts recelvables as per the
company's policy and assessing compliance with applicable accounting standard.

ii) Testing the design and effectiveness of intemal controls implemented by company
through the accounts receivables cycle.

li) Critically considering managements assumption used in determining Impairment losses
for both specific and collective loss components,

iv) Identifying those accounts receivables with eredit risk exposure and checking if they are
properly included in management's impalrment assessment.

v)  Examining on sample basis, evidence related to post year-end cash receipts,

vi) We re-checked the provision against accounts receivables based on the company's
policy to ensure that provision is appropriate at the statement of financial position date.

3. Adoption of international Financlal reporting Standards (IFRS):

As of January 1, 2017, all listed companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arahia must adopt
International Financial reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed in Saudi Arabia in lieu of
accounting standards issued by Saudi Organization for Cerified Public Accountants
(SOCPA). Accordingly, the company also adopted the Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed in Saudi Arabia for the first time to ensure compliance with
the requirements. As this involves a change in the context of the financial report, as a result,
we have considered it to be key audit matters (KAMSs),

The company has appointed a consultant for transition to International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, who carried out detailed
procedures to identify changes in accounting policies and treatments, presentation and
disclosures in the financial statements. The consultant issued a report, and we held a meeting
with the consultant to give our comments on the report on the transition to Intemational
Financial reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for
financial reporting which has been duly incorporated.

We have also reviewed the company's compliance with the requirements of intzrnational
financial reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in terms
of policies, accounting treatments, presentation and disclosures of the requirements of
international Standard No, 1 "First Time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting
standards®.

The impacts of the transition to intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia on the company’s financial statements have been
disclosed in note Wo. (4) to the financial statements.



Other information included in the Company’s Annual Report

Other information consists of the information include in the Company's 2017 annual report,
other then the consolidated financial statements and owr auditor’s report thereon.
Management is responsible for the other information in its annual report. The annual report
is expected lo be made available to us after the date of the auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the consolidated financial statemenis, our responsibility is 1o
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
informeation is materially [nconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Goveroance for the
consolidated financial slatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presemtation of the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards as applicable in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, es applicable, matters
related to golng concern and using the going concem basis of sccounting unless management
either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with povemance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

Auditors’ Responsibllities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
stalernents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but iz not a guarantee that an eudit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (I1SA) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect
a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.



As pant of an audit w accordance with Inernauonal Stamdards on Auditing (1SA ) as endorsed
i vhe Kingdoam ol Saihi Arabia we exvroise professiomal judgment and maimtain professiomnal
skepticism throvghout the audic We alwy,

¢ ldennly and assess the rishs of material misstatement of the consofiduted financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and pecfunm sudit procedures responsive
I those risks, and oblain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide o
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for une resulting Trom error, as fraud may involve eollusion, forgery,
intentivmal vmissions, misrepresentations, or the override of nternal control,

= OUbnrin an wnderstanding of wleooal conttol relesant we te aude moomder o design aoda
procedures that are appropiiate in the cicamstances, bt aol bor the purpose of expressing
un vpinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control

o Lvaluate the appropristeness of accounting puhuies used and the reasonableness of
avcounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢  Conclude vn the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis ol
accounling and, based on the audit evidenced obiained, whether a material unceriainty
exists related to events or conditivns thal may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability 1 continue as a puing concern. IF we conclude that a materls) uncernainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our guditor's report 1o the related disclosurcs in the
vonsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modily our
epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up w the date of vur
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company W cease
o conlinue as a going concem.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audil and significant audit Mindings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal conirol that we idenlify during our audit.
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MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE  December 31, December 31, January 01,
2017 20146
ASSETS SR SR SR
Non-Current assels
Operating fixed asseis 6 1110,061.940 E83,197.97% E77.630.413
[ntangible assets 7 5751955 3,879,459 3,664,957
Capital work in progress 156,965,200 227.604,025 155,879,487
Total non-current assets 1.272.779.095 1.114,681,463 1,037,174 857
Current assets
[nventories 8 111,449,774 00,647,345 77,004,440
Account receivahles 9 1.138.043,798 1.146,151,737 901,272,931
Prepayments and
other current assets 10 46,205,961 44,112,282 46,533,532
Cash and bank balances 111,053,895 155,000,776 55,800,176
Total current assets 1,406,753,428 1.436,002,140 1.080,611,33%
Total assels 2,679,531,523 2,550,683,603 2,107, 786,196
‘AN
Equity
Share capital 19 920,400,000 920,400,000 920,400,000
Statuory reserve 0 134,827,612 124,819,329 £8.6333M
Retained earnings 629,012,157 549,173,636 195,606,340
Equity attributable to shareholders 1,704,239.769 1,594,392 965 1,404,639 664
Mon-controlling interests n 51,731,710 59351808 61,037 4989
Total equity 1,755,971,479 1,653,744,773 1,465,677,653
Non-current liabilities
Term loans 11 131,025,594 128,515,326 55B938932
Other non-current financial liahilities 40908116 20,745,781 26987973
Deferred income /gain 12 2.200.7197 16,302,619 18.217.891
End of service benefits 13 183,215,920 161,759,716 144,033,101
Total non-current liabilities 377.359.427 327,323,442 245137997
Current liabilities = P
Shert tenm and current portion 1 172,876,453 186,731,384 95,126,260
ofterm loans
Accounts payables, acorued 14 373,325,164 382 BR4,004 310,844,286
and other linhilities
Total current liabilitics 546,201,617 569,615,388 406,970,546
Total liabililies 023,561,044 B96,938 830 652,108,543

813

Total equity and liabilities 2,679.5
. -1
/ mar{cqﬂ. @Bﬂ ey Mamoun Al Najjar

Ch.mrman “Thief Executive Officer

2,850,683,603

P

ﬁ[a:%i‘m

2,117,786,196

arghtss

Mas

Chief Financial Officer

The attached notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 217

NOTE 1017 2016
SR SR
Revenues 18 1,629,429,607 1.615,641,155
Cost of revenue [ B64,522 2869 (787,155,965
Gross profit 764,907,321 B28,385,190
Selling and marketing expenses 15 {  179.004,362) {  181,309,345)
General and administrative expenses 16 ( 310,537.408) { 288,702,089
Total operating expenses {  489,541.770) [ 470.011.434)
Results from operaling activitics 275,365,551 358,373,756
Other ncome 15,059,539 18,336,594
Finznce cost { 11,997.126) { 13,242,669)
Net profit before zakat 278,427,964 363,467,681
Zakm { 5.465.234) { 3,977,222
Net profit for the year 272,962,730 359,490,459
Profit attributable to:
Sharehalder’s of the company 300.082 828 362,643,920
Non controlling interast { 27.120,058) { 3.153.460)
Net profit for the year 272,962,730 359,490,459

Other Comprehensive [ncome:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Gains/(losses) on actuarial valuation {  6.156024) { 2.363,067)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 266,806,706 357,121.392

Comprehensive [ncome attributable to:

Shareholders® of the Company 293,926,804 360,280,853

Non-controlling interests { 27,120,098 ( 3,153.461)
Net 266,806,706 357,127,392

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Saudi Riyal) 22

Earning per share from net profit 326 394

Eaming per share from main operations 3.09

Average number of shares outstanding 92,040,000

Sobhi Abduljalil Banerjee Mohammed Mamoun Al Najjar Alarma Varghese Thomas
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The attached notes are an integral pari of these consolidated financial statements
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MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARLE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEZR 11, 2017

2017 2016
SR. SE.
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the year 272.962,730 359,490 459
Adjustment to reconcile net income to nef cash (used in) provided by:
Depreciation & Amortization 76,722,027 63,590,017
End of service benefits 15,300,180 15,363,548
Zakat 5,465,234 3977222
Net adjusted profit 370,450,171 442,421,246
Clianges in operating assels and fiabilides:
Accounts receivable 8,107,939 { 244,878,746)
Inventories { 20,802429) ( 13,642,905)
Prepayments and other current assets ( 2,093,679 2,421,250
Accounts payables, accrued and other liabilities { 15024,074) 67,062,497
Met cash provided by operating activities 340,637,928 253,383,342
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES an
Operating fixed assets { SE93R63E) ( 68,301,822)
Intangible assets ( 2.890,989) ( 1,070,264)
Capital work in progress ( 172,990,032) { 71,724,538)
Net cash (used in) investing activities ( 234819659)  (  141,096,624)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Term loans { 11,344,663) 164,221,518
Other non-current financial liabilities 20,162,335 ( 6,242,192)
Deferred revenue 5907178 ( 1,215372)
Dividend paid ( 184,080,000) { 184,080,000)
Income tax reimbursed from Zakat & Tax Authority -- 13,552,448
NMon-controlling interests 19,500,000 1,467,280
Wet cash (used in) financing activities { 149.855,150) ( 12,996,318)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND BANK (  44,036,881) 90,200,400
CASH AND BANK AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 155,090,776 55,800,376
CASH AND BANK AT END OF THE YEAR 111,053,895 155,090,776
EESEETERIEw A EE T T
Mon- ion:
Capital work in progress capitalized 243,628,858 -

L S

TRl

So bdukalil Batterjee %aﬁar Alarma Varghese Thomas

alrman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MIDDLE EAST IIEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended December 31, 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Middle Fast Healthcare Company (the “Company™) and its subsidiarics (collectively the
“Group™) consist of the Company and its various branches and a subsidiary in Saudi Arabia.
The Company was a closed joint stock company operating under commetcial registration
number 4030149460 dated Rabie Al-Thani 06, 1425 {H) corresponding to May 23, 2004
(G).

On Rabi Al-Awal 19, 1437 (H) comesponding to December 30, 2015 (G) the Company
obtained approval from Capital Management Authority {CMA) to offer 27,612.000 shares
in Initial Public Offering and the Company’s shares are listed at Saudi Steck Exchange
(Tadawul) on Jumada Al-Thani 20, 1437 (H) conesponding to March 29, 2016 {G).
Accordingly the Company was converted (o a Public Joint Stock Company.

The main objective of the Company is managing, operating and maintaining hospitals,
medical centers, educational centers, rehabilitation centers, physiotherapy, laboratorics and
radiology centers, pharmaciecs, construction and 1o buy land for the purpose of constructing
medical projects and to establish, manage and organize exhibitions for the company.

The Company has investments in the following branches and subsidiarics {collectively
referred to as the “Group™) al the reporting periods:

{a}  Dvrect and indirect subsidiaries of the Company

(i)  Operating entilics/ subsidiary

Entry/Subsidiary name Comniercial Issuedon  Corresponding Ownership interest
Repisiration No. To {%k at September M
2017 2016
Saudi Gemnan Hospital - feddah AN3e124157 Safar 05 1-31% May 30, L9958 19H1%5 1A
%audi Crerman Elaspital - Rwadh 10101622658 Rajab 24, [421 Qgiober 22, 2k 160094 T4
Saudi German Haspital — Ageer S855M9364  Diwl Hipah 28, 420 Apcl 03, 2000 LLTLSY LD
Szudi Gierman Hospital — AMadinan 4630325590 Hafar 18, 1423 Aaogust 3, 2002 100 | i1
Abdul [alez] Thratem Batlerjee Son3
Development 40301517 Shaban 04, 1429 Augest [, 2005 L G0% 1045
Saady Gemean Hosputal — Dannam 2050105713 Rajab 18, 1438 May 07,1013 L% 10H%%
Wational Heil Company for Healthoare
(NIC) A Closed Jointly Slock Co. 5350019735 Taah 0F, 1428 Tuly 146, 2607 12 35% 32 35i%
Beverly Clinics — A Branch of MEAHCO 030297088 Safur 26, 1439 Movember [32017 1004 -

The Company hold 32.33% in NHC. however based on control exercised by the Group, NHC
has been consolidaled as subsidiary refer note 2.2. The 67.67% shares in NHC are disclosed
as Non-Controlling interest.

-1,



MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2617

-8
z.l

2.2

SIGKIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES
Basis of preparation and Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial slatements of the Middle East Healthcare Company {the
“Group”) are prepared in aecordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standerds
{[FRS) as issued by Intemational Accounting Standerds Board {“1A58™) and the
requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-Laws in so far as
they relate to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements,

For all periods, up to and incluging the year ended December 31, 2016 the Group prepared
its financial statements in accerdance with the accounting standards generally acce pted in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, issued by Saudi Crrganizations for Cenified Public
Accountants (“SOCPA™). The consolidated financial slatement for the year ended
Deceriber 31, 2017 are the first that the Group prepared in accordance with JFRS as
endorsed by SOCPA. [FRS 1 first-time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards has been applied. Refer to Note 4 for information on how the Group adopted
IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 8 historical cast basis, excepl
for derivative financial instraments and available-for-sale (AFS} financial assets that have
been measured at fair value, The cansalidated financial statements are presented in Saudi
Eiyal.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statlements comprise of the financial statements of the Group
and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the inveslce and has the ability lo affect those refums through ils power
aver the investee. Spacifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Graup
has:

s+ Power pver the investee {ie., existing rights thal give it the current ability to dirset

the relevant activitias of the investee).
« Exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its inviolvernent with the investes.
» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retumns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. Te
support this presumpticn and when the Group has less than a majority of the voling or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and cirqumslances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The cuntractual arrangemeni(s) with the other vote holders of the investee
+ Rights arising from other gontractual giTangements,
» The Group's voling rights and potential voling righls.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and Circutnstances
{ndicate that there are changes 1o one ar more of the three elements of control.
Cousolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains contra! over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Groug loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, linbilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or dizposed of during the year are incladed in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains controt until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

=11~



MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY {MEAHCO)

(A Saudi Jolnt Stock Company)

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIMATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

2.3

231

23

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive ingome (OCT) are atiributed 1o
the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the nan-controlling interests having a deficil balance.

When necessary, adjustmenls are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies inte line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and labilities, equily, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Graup are eliminated in full on consatidation.

Summary of significant accounilng policles

The fallowing are the significant accounting pelicies applied by the Group in preparing its
consolidated financial statements:

Current versus non-cureent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification. An asset (s curcent when it is:

» Expected 1o be realized or intended to sold or consumed in the notinal cperating
cycle

s Held primarily for the pumpose of rading.

s Expecied to be realized within twelve months sfter the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent onless restricled from being sxchanged or used to settle a
liakility for at least twelve months after the reporting peried. All other assets are
classified as non-current,

A liability iz current when:
» [tiz expecied to be settled {n the normal opsrating cycle
o Ivis held primarily [or the purpose of trading
s Itis due to be setlfed within twelye months after the reporting pericd, er
» There is no uncenditivnal right to defer the setiferncnt of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting peried

The Group classifies all other liabililies as non-current. Deferred tax assels and liabilities
are classified as non-current assels and labilities.

Fair value measurement

Fair value ig he price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to Lansfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement 35 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

v [n the principal market for the asset or Hability or
& In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagasus market for the asset
or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
valug of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumplions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market panticipants act in their
economie best interest.

-12-
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A fair vatue measurement of 2 non-financial asset fakes into acoount a macket participant's
ability Lo gencrate economic benefits from the asset's highest and best use or by selling it
1o another market participant that would utilize the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uscs valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unehservable inpuls.

All asscts and lebilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
slatements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement s a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoled (unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

v Level 2 — Valuation techniques For which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value rmeasurament i directly or indirectly observable

¢+ Level 3 -— Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! inpul that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assels and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Group delermines whether ransfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting petiod.
The Group’s management detennines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurernent, such as derivatives and unquoted available-for-sale finangial asscets,
and For nonrecurring measurement, such s assels held for distribution in discontinued
operations.

Al each reporling date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
[iabilities which are sequired to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inpuls applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in (e valuation computation to canlracts and other
relevant documenis.

Managerment, in conjunction with the Group's valuers, alsa compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant extemal sources to determine whether the
chenge is reasonabte.

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined ¢lasses of assels and

liabilitics on the basis of the nature, characterislics and risks of the asset or Hability and the
leve! of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

-13-
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Fakat and Taxes
Fakas

The Group and ils subsidiaries are subject to Zakat and income tax in accordance with the
regulations of General Authority of Zakat and [ncome Tax ("GAZT™). Group's zakat and
its share in zakat of subsidiaries and associates are charged (o consolidated statement of
income. Zakat and income tax attributable to other Saudi and foreign shareholders of the
consolidated subsidiaties are charged to Nen-Controtling interest in the accompanying
consolidated statement of balance sheet, Additional zakst and income tax liabikity, if any,
relaled to prigr years' assessments arising from GAZT are accounted for in the peried in
which the final assessments are finalized.

Current iocome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the curment pericd are measured at the amount
expecied 1o be recovered from or paid te the taxation authoritics, The tax rates and tax laws
used to compule the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date where the Group
opcrates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax refums wilh respect lo
situations in which applicable fax rules are subject to interpretation, and «stablishes
pravisions, if any.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method an temporary differences between the
lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounis for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred Lax liabilities are recognized for all taxable lemporary differences, excepl:

s When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that 5 not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, alfects ngither the accounting profit nor taxable profil or loss

» In respect of faxsble lemporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries end associates, when the timing of the reversal of the wemporary
differences can be contralled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, W the extent that it is probable that
taxablz profit will be available against which the deductible temparary differences.

The carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 1ax losses can be wtilized, excepl:

s When the deferred tax gsset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not &
business combination and, at the time of the wansaction, affects neither the
accounling profit nor taxable peofit or loss
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v Tn respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associntes, deferred Lax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differsnces can be
ulilized

The camrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewsd at cach reporting date and reduced
1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all er part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assels
arc reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it hes become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred lax assels and Fabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realized er the liability is seled, based on tax rates {and fax
{aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred lax assels and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceabls right exists
to sl off current fax assels against current income tax lizbilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same laxalion authority. Tax benefits acquired as
part of a business combinalion, but not satisfying the crileria far separate recognition at
that date, are recogrized subsequently if new information shout facts and circumstances
change. The adjustment {5 either be treated a5 a reduction to goodwill (a5 leng as il does
not exceed goodwilly if it is incurred during the measurement peried or recognized in profit
or lass,

QOperating fixed aszels

Operating fixed assels are stated a1 cost, net of accumulated depreciation andfor
aceurnulated impairment losses, ifany. Such cost inciudes the cosl of replacing parts of the
property, plant and equipment and botrewing costs for long-term construction prajects if
the recognilion criteria arc met.

When significant parts of cperating fixed assets are reguired o be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly. Likewise, when 8 majar inspection is performed, ils cost is recogmized
in the carying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recagnition
eriteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the profit or
loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the
asset after its use, is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recopnition criteria
for a provision are met. Purchased softwere that is integrel o the functionatity of the
retated equipment is capitalized as part of thet equipment.

Depreciation is caleulated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, less
its residuat valuc on a siraight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

- Building L5 to 45 years

- Plant, machinery and squipment 4 1o L5 years,

Computer equipment 4 ta 10 years

- Motor vehicles 4 to L& years

- Fumiture and fixiures 4 to 1) years

- Ofice squipmerl 4 to 10 years

- Leaschold improvement - period of lease or 20 years, whichever is less

18-
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Construction in progress and tand are not depreciated. An item of aperating fixed assets
derecognized upon disposal or when na future ceonomic benefits are expected from its uzse
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated ag the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset) is
included in (he statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. Changes in the
expected useful [ife or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the depreciation period or methoed, as
appropriate, end are freated a5 changes in accounting esUmates. The cost of reptacing a
part of an item of operating fixed assets is recognized in the carrying amount of the itern if
it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of operating fixed assels are
recognized in profit or loss ps incumred,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of operating fixed assets are
reviewed ai each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement s, of conlaing, a lease is based on the
substance ofthe amrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether
fulfillment of the arrangement {s dependent on the use of a specific asset or asscts or the
arrangement conveys a right 10 use the assel or assels, even if that right is not explicitly
specificd in an arrangemenl,

For arrangements entered into prior to January 01, 2017, the date of inception is deemned o
be January 01, 2047 in accordance with TFRS | Firsttime Adoption of International
Reporting Standards.

Group 25 & lessee

Finanee leases that transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits incidenlal
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the commencemenl of the lease at the
fair value of the leased property or, i€ lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments acc apportioned between finance charges and a reduction in the
lease liahility 5o as 1o achieve a conslant rate of interest on the remaining batance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized in inceme slatement,

Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all ofthe risks and benefits incidental
to awnership of the leased ilem, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the
fair valus of the leased praperty or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Leasc payments are apporiioned between finance charges and a reduction in the
lease liability so as W achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liabitity. Finance charges are recognized in income statement.

An operaling lease is a lease other then a finance lease. Operating lease payments are
recapnized as an operating expense in the statement of profil er loss on a gtraight-line basis
over Lhe lease term.
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Barrowing costs

Bomowing costs direclly atuributable to the acquisitian, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial perigd of time Lo get ready for ils intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borowing cosls consist of interest and ather
cosls incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs incurred on or aficr the date of Iransition (January 01, 2017) far all eligible
qualifying assets are capitalized. The borrowing casts capitalized uader SOCPA on
qualifying asscls 10 the date of Lransition to [FRS are included in the camying amount of
asseis at that date.

Iatangible assels
Guoodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assats.

Intangible assets are measured on initiel recognition at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets
are carried at cosl less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The right to use land are amotized over Lhe concession period ona straight-line basis.

Intangible assets are amortized over their useful econemic lives and assessed for
impairmenl whenever there is an indicalion thal the intangible asset may be mpaired. The
amortization pesiod and the amortization method for an intangible asset with 2 finite useful
life are reviewed at teast at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
assel are aceounted for by changing the amortization peried or methed, as appro priale, and
are treated as changes in sccounting estimates. The amoriization expense on intangibte
assets with finite tives is tecognized in income statement categary consistent with the
function.

Gains or losses atising flam derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the nel disposal procesds and the carrying amounl of the asset and are
recognized in the staterment of profit or loss when the assetis derecognized.

Financiel insttuments — initlal recognition and subsequent measurement

A finacicial insbrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 2
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i] Financial assets
Inltia] recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, ot initial recognition, as loans and receivables, Available for
Sale {AFS) financial essets as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initiel recognition.

All Financial assets are recognized inftially at fair value phus, in the caze of assets not al fair

value through profit or loss, transaclion cosls that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.
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Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as
degcribed below:

Laans and receivables

This category is the most retevant to the Group. Loans and receivables are non~derivative
financial asssts with fixed or determinable paymenis that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at
amortized cosl using the effeclive intzrest rate (ELR) method, less impairment. Amortized
cost 5 caloulated by laking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and fees
ar costs hat are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance
income in the stalement of profit or foss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized
in the statement of profit or 1oss {n finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or oiher
operating expenses for receivables. This category gensrally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Derecogoition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial sssel or part of & group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, ar

+ The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows [rom the assel or has
assuried an ohligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material deley
to a third parly under 2 'pass-through’ arrangement, and either

{a} the Group has ransferred substantially all the rigks and rewards of the assct, or
(b) the Group has neither ransferced nor retained subsiantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has sransferred control of the assck

Whe it has neither kansferred nor relained subsiantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transfersed control of it, the assel is recognized to the extent of its continuing
invalvement in it. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the assoviated liability are measured on a basis thatreflects the rights
and obligations thal the Group has retained.

Conlinuing involvement that takes the form of 2 guarantee over the ransferred asset is
measured al the lower of the original carrying amounl of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that (the Group could be required fo repay.

iiy Impairmeat of financlal assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial assct or 2 group of financial asscts is impaired. An impairment exists if ane or
mote evenls that hias ocourred since the initial recognition of the asset (an ncurred 'loss
evenl’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the deblors or & group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest o principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where ohservable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the eslimaled future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaulis.
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Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For finaricial assets camrisd at amortized cost, the Oroup first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. Tf the Group determines thal no
ohjeclive evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financiel 2sscts with similar
credit risk characteristics and callectively assesses them for impairment.

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and far which an impaiment loss is,
ar centinues lo be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment toss identifizd is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding
future expected credit losses that have ot yet been incurred). The present valug of the
eslimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carcying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amaunt of the loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continnes to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used lo
discount the fiuture cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
intercst income is recorded as part of finance income in the statement of profit or loss.
Loans, tagether with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been Iransferred to
the Graup. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment luss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. [Fa write-ofF is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in profil
or loss.

iil) Financlal liabllities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are elassified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings, or
payables.

All financial lizbilities are recognized {nitially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly atribulable lransaclion costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, and detivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurcment

The measurement of Enancial liabilities depends an their classification, a5 follows:
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Loans and barrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group, Afier initial recagnition, interest bearing
toans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effaclive
interest rate meshod. Gains and losses are recognized in the staternent of profit or loss when
the lighilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate methed (EIR)
amortizalion process,

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into aceaunt any discount or premium on acquisilion
and fees ar costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR. amadtization {5 included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applics to inlesest-
bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecogaltion

A finzncial Hability s derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelted or expires. When an existing financial ebility (s replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated a5 a derecognition of
the ariginal liability and the recognition of 2 new liability. The difference in the respactive
carmying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

iv) OMfsetting of Goancial lus{ruments

Financial assets and financial lizbilitiss are offset with the net amount reparied in the
consolidated staternent of linancial position only if there iz a current enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and an intent 10 setile on a ngt basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Costs inoumed in
bringing each product to its present tocation and condition are accounted for en purchase
¢ost on an average casl basis.

Finished goods:
Net realizabte value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busiress, less
estimated eosts of completion and the eslimated costs to sell.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication thal an asset may
be impaired. [f any indication exists, of when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assefs recoverable
amount is (he higher of an asset's or Cash Genperating Unit (CGL's) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent elthose fram other assets or groups
of assels. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU cxceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market essessments of the lime
value of money and the risks specific to the asser. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, Tecent market ransactions are taken inte account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly lraded subsidiaries or other available
fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and favecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Group™s CGU to which the individual aszels are
allocated. These calculacians are generally covering a period of five years and & long-term
growth rate is applied to project future cash flows aftes that,

[mpairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the income statement, excepl
for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to OCL I[n this case,
the impairment {s also recognized in OClup to the amount of any previous revaluation,

For assels excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporiing date as to whether
there is any indication thal previously recogmized impainment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. [f such indication exists, the Group gstimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amrount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine (he asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized.

The reversal iz limited so that the carrying amount of the asset docs not excesd its
recaverable amount, nor exceed the camying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried al a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as & revaluation increase,

Cash sod short-fterm deposits

Cash and shart-term deposils in the slatement of financial position comprise cash at banks
#nd on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three manths or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement cash flows, cash and cash gquivalents consisl
of cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of cutstanding bank overdrafis as
they are considered an integral pert of the Group's cash management.

Cash dividend distribution to pwoers of cquity
The Group reeognizes a ability to make cash to gwners of equity when the distribution is
authorized and the distribulion is no [onger at the discretion of the Group. A distribuwlion (s

authorized when il is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized
in cquily.

221
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Provisicns

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal ot constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying ECONOMIC
benefits will be required to settfe the obligation and a reliable eslimate can be madg of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of & provision lo be
reimbursed, for examgle under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recagnized as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually ce rain. The expense relating
to B provision [s presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

Re-measurements, comprising ofactuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in
the statement of financial position with a comesponding debit or credit to refained eamings
through OCI in the peried in which they oceur. Re-measuremenis are pot reclassified ta
profil or loss in subsequent periods. Past service eosts are recognized in profit or loss on
the eatlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment and the date on which the
Group recognizes related restructuring cosls,

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the nel defined benefit liability
or asset. The Group recognizes changes in the net defined benefit obligation under *cost of
sales’, “administration expenses’ and *selling and distribution expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement, namely, service costs COmprising ¢ument service cosls, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine scitle ments and net interest expense
or [ncome.

Revenue recopnition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the econemic benefits will flow
(o the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty,

The specific rezognition criterin described below must also be met before revenus is
recognized,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of gouds is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership ofthe poods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery ofthe goods. Revenue
from (be sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received ar
receivable, net of retums and allowances, tradc discounts and vatume rebates.

Rendering of services

Income is recognized upan the delivery of services and customer acceplance, if any, or
performance of services, net of income discounts.

ey 9
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For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on its products
and services and has thrge reportable sepments, a3 follows:

Inpatient Services
Quipatient Services
Fharmacy Sales
Cithers

Mo operaling segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable eperating
sepments,

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpese
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performances is evalualed based on profit or tuss and 1s measured consistently with profil
or loss in the consalidated financial statements. Also, the Graup's finance cosls and income
taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices betwoen operaling segments are on an arm’s length basiz in a manner
sinitar 1o transactions with third parties,

Foreipo currencies

The Croup’s consolidated financiat statements are presented in Saudi Riyal, which is alse
the parenl company’s fanctional cumency. For each entity, the Group determines the
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of
consolidation and on disposal of a foreign opetalion, the gain or loss that is reclassified to
profi oz loss reflects the amount that arises from using Whis method.

i) Transections and balances

Transactions in foreign carrencies ate initially recorded by the Group's entities at their
respective funclional currency spot rates at the date the trapsaction first qualifies for
recognition. honetary agsets and habililies denominated in foreign currencies are
translated al the funciional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Gifferences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit
or loss.

Non-monelary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a fareign curvency are
translated using the exchange ratgs at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monglary
items measured at fair value in & foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dale when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on transtation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss an the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognized in OCE or profil or loss are also recognized in OC1 or profit
or loss, respectively).
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2.3.18

Employee Bene(lts
Defined benefit plan

The Group operates an approved unfunded employees’ end of service benefits plan for its
permanent employaes. The plan was approved by management / board of direclors end
meets the requirements of the Saudi Labor Law. The liability recognized in the balance
sheet in respect of end of service benefit ptan, is the present value of the defined benefit
obligatien al the balance sheet date,

Effective December 31, 2015, the Group has started using an independent aciuary lo ensure
adequacy of provision for employees’ end of service benefits. The provision for
employees’ end of servica benefits is based on rules staled under the Saudt Arabian Labor
and Workmen Law and is calculated periodically by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credil method.

The Group recognizes pasl service cost, current service cost and interest cost direclly in the
consolidated statement of profitor less. Amounts arising as 8 result of "Remeasurements™,
representing the actuarial gains and losscs are recognized in the Statement of Financial
Position immediately, with a charge or credit to “Cther Comprehensive Income” in the
periods in which they occur,

Terminativn benefits

Termination benefils are recopnized as an expense when the Group is committed
demonstrably, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal cetirement dale, or to provide termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Group has riade an offer of
voluntary redundancy, it is probable thal the offer will be accepted, ard the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. I benefits are payable more than 12 months after
the reporting peciod, then they are discounted to their present value,

Short-term emplayee benefits

Shori-term emglayee benelit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount
expected 1o be paid under short-term cash banus o profit sharing plans if the Groug has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Financial income and Moance cost

Finance income comprises interest income oo funds invested (including available-for-sale
financial assels), dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial
assels, and gains on hedging instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Inlerest
income is recognized as it accrues in profit ar loss, using the effective intergst methad.
Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date that the Group®s right to receive
payment is established, which in the case of quated securities is the ex-dividend date.
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2.3.20

3.1

Finance cosls comprise interest expense on homrowings, unwinding of the discount on
provisions, impairment losses recognized on financial asscts, and losses on hedging
instruments that are recognized in profil or loss. Borrowing casls that are pot directly
atiributable to (he acquisilion, construction of production of a qualifying asset are
recognized in profit or loss using the effeative interest method.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EP3
is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average purnber of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period, adjusted for own shares held.

Government Grants and Governneat Assistance

Govemment grants are recognized wherg there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attached conditions wili be complicd with. Where the grant relates Lo
an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released to income aver the period of
tepayment of grant.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded at
neminat amounts and released 10 the income statement over the expected useful life and
pattem of censumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instaliments.
Where loans or similar assistanee are provided by govemments or related institutions with
an interest rate below the carreni applicable markel rate or interest free, the effect of this
favorable interest is regarded as govemment grant.

NEW STANDARDS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Company has reviewed new and Tevised accounting pronguncements that have been
issued but are not yel effective and determined that the following may have an impact en
the Company:

Financlah instruments

IFRS 9 Financial instrurnents: Classification and seasurement’ - replaces the guidance on
classification and measurement of financial insiruments in [AS 39 Financial Instrumenls
Fecagnition and Measuremant. The new standard requires a consistent approach ko the
classification of finencial assets and replaces the numeraus categories of financial assets in
[AS 10 with twa catepories, measured al either emartized cost or at fair value. For fnancial
fiabilitics, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements, but where the faic value
option is taken, the part ofa fair value chanpge due (o an enlity's own eredit risk is recorded
in other comprehensive income rather thap the income statement, unless this creates an
accounting mismalch.

The new standard {a} no longer requires the use of a specific quantitative threshold to
determine if the hedging relationship is highly effective to qualify for hedge accounting;
and {b) remaves restriciions that prevenied same econornically rational hedping strate gies
from qualifying for hedge accounting,

The standard becomes effcetive for apnual periods beginning on or after Jamuary 01,2018
and is to be applied retrospectively with the exception of the general hedging phase which
is applied prospeeiively. Farly adoption is permitted, The Company is currenily evalualing
the impact the new standard on its consolidaled financial statements.



MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

{A Saudi Joint Slock Company}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decenrber 31, 2017

32

3.3

Bevenue from contracls with customers

In May 2014, the 1ASB issued IFRS 15 — Revenue [rom Contracts with Customers (“[FRS
15"}, which replaces IAS 11 = Construction Coniracts, JAS |8 = Revenue and IFRIC 13 —
Customer Loyalty Programmed (“[FRIC 137), as well as various other interpretations
regarding revenue. [FRS 15 outlines 2 single comprehensive model for entities to use in
acgounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers, except for conlracts that are
within the scope of the standards on leases, insurance contracts and financial instrumenls.
IFRS 15 also containg enhanced disclosure requirements. TFRS L5 will be applied
recrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 31, 2018. Early adoplian
is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact af this stan dard.

IFRS 16 "Lenses™

IFRS 16 “Leases™ was issued in January 2016 and is effective for years beginning on or
after January 1, 2019, 1o be applied retrospectively orona madified remospective basis, [t
is intended 10 replace 1AS 17 Leases™ and iFRIC 4 “Determining whether an arrangement
containe a tease”. [FRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for hoth parties to a conlract, the customer (“lessee”)
and the supplier (“lesser™), The standard brings most leases an-balance sheet for lessess
under a single mode!, ehminaling the previous classifications of operating and finance
leases. The only exemption to this treatment ia for lease contracts with duration of less than
one year. The on-balance sheat treatment will resultin the grosaing up of the balance sheet
due to a right-of-use asset being recognized with an offseiting ligbility. Lesser accounting
under the standard remains targely unchanged with previous classifications of operaling
and finance leases being maintained. The Company is assessing the impact of 1his siandard.

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFR3

The Consolidated Financial Statements, for the year ended December 31, 2017 are the first
(he Group has prepared in accordance with [FRS. For periads, up lo and including Lhe year
ended 31 December 2816, the Group prepared its financial statements in accerdance with
SOCPA.

Accordingly, the Group has prepared finenciel statements that comply with [FRS
applicable as at December 31, 2017 together with the comparative period data for the year
ended December 31, 2016 as described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
In preparing the financial statements, the Ciroup's opening statement of fimancial position
was prepared as gt January 01, 2016, the Graup's date of transition 10 [FRS. This note
explains the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its SQOCPA finansial
slatements, including the stalement of financial position as at January @1, 2016 and the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016,

FExemptions applied

IFRS 1 allows cemain exemptions [from (he retrospective application of cerein
requirements under IFRS. The Group has applied the fallowing transiticnal provisien:

LAS 23 Borrowing Cosls and capitalizes costs relating o all qualifying assets after the dats

of transition and has also not reslated borrawing costs capitalized under SGCPA prior to
Iransition date.

-36-
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Estimates

The estimates at January 01, 2017 and at December 31, 2017 are conzistent with thase
made for the same dates in accordance with SOCPA (after adjusiments to reflect any
differences in accounting policies).

The estimates used by the Group to present these amounts i accardance with [FRS reflect
conditions at January 01, 2017, the date of transition to TFRS and asat Dacember 11,2817

Breficed benefit obligation

Under SOCPA, (he Group recognized costs related to its defi ned benchit plan on an acerual
basis, IFRS, defined benefit liabilities are recognized on an actuarial basls with the
difference recognized in retained earaings.

Depreciation of operating fixed assets

1AS 16 requires significant component parts of an item of operating fixed assels 1o be
deprecisted separately. As explained in note 234, the cost of major hspeciions is
capitalized and depreciated scparately over the period to the next major inspection. Atthe
date of wansition (o 1FRS, an increase of SR 42,363,030 was recognized in aperating fiked
assels net of accumulated deprecialion due to scparate depreciation of sipnificant
components of operating fixed assets. This amount has been recognized agrinst retained
camings.

=27
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d.4. Notes to the effect of LFRS Adoption

a. Crperating Tixed assets

Under 5OCPA Standards all (he fixed assels were capitalized wnder single
component. [FRS requires (o componentize the assets according to theit estimated
uscfud Yife. Therefore, companentization of assets resulted in increase of depreciation
charge which is allocated to cost of sale and general and administrative expenses as
per usage of the fixed asscls.

b. Intangible assets
Software Licenses have been reclassificd from Property, Plant and Equipment to be
presented under Intangible Assets for fair presentatian.

'3 Capital work in progress
Capilal work in progress have been reclassified from other receivables to be
presented under capital work in progress for fair presentalion.

d. Accounts receivables
Receivable from related parties are shown as separate lime item under trade
receivables for fair presentation.

'3 Advances, deposits, prepayments and oiher receivables
Advances 10 supplier are shown as separate line item reclassified from Creditars for
fair presenlation.

E, Term loans

Interest frec loan from Ministry of Finance have been presented as per requirements
of 145 20 Accounting for Govemnment Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance.

These lpans have been discounted on market interest rate and deferred income arising
from Joan has been amontized aver the loan repayment period.

Mark up expense arising from interesl free loan has been grouped with Financial
Charges and mark up payable is shown in note no. 14 under Account payables,
Accrued and Oiher payables,

E- Employee beneflts

Under SOCPA Standards, the Graup recorded its ligbility under Employee Benafit
based on tegulatory requirements, [n order 1o determing the liability under [FR3
Standards, the Group performed detsited actarial veluation of its Employee
Benefits. Consequently, reduction of expense for the period has been reversed from
profit or loss for the petiod. The detailed workings are shown in note no. 13.

h. Account payables, accrued and other payables
Payables to related parties have heen shown as separate line item under account
payables for fair presentation.

Advances to supplier are shown as separate line item under Advancss, Doposits and
prepayments, reclassified from Account payables for fair prese ntation.

a2



MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

{A Saudi Jaint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIYATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31,2017

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPIONS

The preparation of the Group's cansolidated financial stalerncnts requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumplions thal affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, asscis and Fabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent Jiabililies. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 2 material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assetar liability affected in fisture periods.

Judpments

In the process of applying the Group's accounling policies, management has made
the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the consolidated
financial slatements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future gnd other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
zdjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the aext financial
year, are described below, The Group based s assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about futare developments, howewver, may
change due tp market changes or circumslances arising bayond the control of the
Giroup. Sach changes are reflected in the assg mptions when they oceur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of &n assct or COU exceeds its
recaverable amount, which is the higher of its faic value less costs of disposal and its
valug it use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available
data fram binding sales transactions, conducted at ermv's length for similar assels of
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the assct. The value
in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do nol include restrucharing activities that the
Group is not yel commilted to ot significant future invesiments that will enhance the
assel’s performance of the CGU being tested.

The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF maodel
a5 well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purpeses. There is no impairment a5 of December 31, 2017.

Taxes

Dcferred 1ax assets are Tecognized for unused 1ax losses 10 the extent that it is
prabable that laxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized.
Significant management judgment is required to determing the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely Liging and the tevel of future
laxable profits, togethar with future tax planning strategies,

-33-
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Defined henefit

The cast oF defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits are determined
using achuarial valyations. An actuarial valpation involves meking various
assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. Thesz include
the deterrnination of the discount rate, Tuture salary increases, and mortality rales.
Dus to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumpticns and its lang-lerm
nature, a defined benehit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The paramieter mest subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the
apptopriate discount rate, mansgement considers the interesl rates af corporate bonds
in currencies consistent with the currencies of the defined benefit plan with at least
an'AA' rating or above, as setby an internarionally acknowledged rating agency, and
extrapolated as needed along the yield curve lo correspand with the expected term of
the defined benefit plan, The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality.
These having excessive eredil spreads are removed {rom the analysis of bonds en
which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality
bonds. The mertality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the
specific countries. Those monality tables tend 1o change only at interyals in response
10 demographic changes. Future satary increases are bpsed an expected futurs
inflation rates for the country. Reler Nate 13,

Provision for dcubiful debits

A provisien for impairment of aceount receivables is established when there is
abjective evidence that the Group will not be able to collzct all amounts due
according to (he ariginal terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability thal the deblor will enter bankruptcy or Financial
reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are conzidered indicetors that
the trade reccivable is impaired. For significant individual amounts, assessment i
made at individual basis, Amounts which are not individually significant, but are
over-due, are assessed collechively and e provision is recognized considering the
length of time considering the past recovery rates.

Provisian for Inventory obsolescence

The Group determines its provision for inventory cbsolescence based upon historical
experience, expacted inventory lurnover, inventory aging and current condition, and
current and future expectations with respect to sales, Assumplions underlying the
provision for inventory ohsolescence inchuide fumre sales trends, and the expecied
inventory requirements and inventory composition necessary ta support these future
sales and offerings. The estimate of the Group's provision for inventory obsolescence
could materizlly ¢hange from peried to period duc to changes in product offerings of
those products.

Useful lives of operating fixed assets

The managemenl determines the estimated useful ives of operating fixed asscls for
calculating depreciation. This estimale s determined afler considering expected
usage of the assels or physical wear and tear, hManagement reviews the residual value
and useful lives annually and future deprecietion charges are adjusted where
management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimales.
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6. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

a) Forihe year ended December 31, 2017

This item consists of the following:

Balance as at

Belance as at

December 31, Detetionf Dec 3l
2016 Additiops  Adjustments 2017
5R. SR, SR. SR.
LCOST
Land 181,244,120 2700 0 - 183,544,120
Buildings 315841,1606  144,90] 9064 91,000 960,650,130
Medical squipment 501,041,629 K, 786,022 20,163,911 681,663,718
Motar vehicles 9,765,050 522,150 igl, 160 G,726.040
Man-medical equipment 29,562 300 1,830,629 1,464,109 20,928.819
Oifice furnilure & equipments 78,866,540 17,358,158 151473 £9.073,21)
Kitchen, Laundry & workshap
equipments 19,169 658 3,985,621 37T 13,736,565
AC, Plaqt and
equipment 21695450 11,597,842 |88 223 15484419
Electrical equipment 33,690,741 19,287,817 443 466 52,535,092
Moo consumable items 1,059,200 1,278,213 107,191 3,630,222
Toal 1, 785,935,954 204,232 466 312,765,952 2,058,422 468
ACCUN TED DEFR TION
Ruitdings 340,961,073 25,838,499 318,513 166,761,059
bicdical equipment 424 507,969 A7 872,788 18,873,356 443,507,401
Miotor vehicles 5915807 696,153 530,692 6075268
Non-medical equipment 21043 637 1468 526 1.378.9%4 21,093,169
Olfice furniture & equipments  52,524.946 5.4614,395 1,185,925 a0.5531.416
Kitchen, Laundry & workshop
equipments 1044032 760,673 Add o4 7460611
AL, Plant and equipment 20638 655 B4B,Fdd 1,767,432 19,769,966
Electrival equipment 28218603 1,387,676 A03 048 29001 231
Won consureble items 2,173,253 1,216,080 K5l 026 2,836,407
Tolal 903,737,975 TE703,534 31,080,981 948,360,528
Meat Rook Value E52,10797% 1,110,061 940
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAWCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ¢nded December 31, 2007

#. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS (Contd...)
b)Y For the year ended December 31, 2016

This itern consists of the fotlowing:

Ealance ag at

Balance axat

Jaonuary 1, Deletlonf December 31,
20148 Additions djystments 2014
SB.. SH. LR. SE.

COSY
Latid 181,244,110 - 181,244,120
Buildings 804,735 537 11,108,776 4137 B15.841 166
Medical cquipment 561,573,300 48 405,551 891721 601,041,629
Muotor vehicles 0.641,7195 232,410 102,156 9,765,050
MNon-medical equipment 28,915,034 1,373,238 725,813 28,562,399
Office lumiture & equipments  B3,435.917 5812963 153,382,340 78,865,540
Kitchen, Laundry & workshop

equipments 10,343 455 716,608 200 404 10,169 659
AL, Fant and

gquipment 23548674 514,505 467,729 23,695 450

Electrical eduipmant 33,358,387 498 391 166,517 33,690,241
MNon-consumatle jtems 2,756,416 910,419 676,535 3,059,200

Toral 1,744 592 635 69,703,361 27,360,042 1,786,935,954
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Buildings 1x0062,721 20,899,931 1,586 340,961 073
Medical equipment 399,587,290 33,173,710 8,253,031 424 507969
Mator vehicles 5,344,371 680,591 109,155 5,915,807
Won-miedical squipment 20,233,814 1,346,621 551,81% 21,003,637
Office fumiture & equipments 61,382,698 4,216,236 14,073 938 52,524,946
Kitchen, Lamndry & workshop

equipments TARI 484 414,393 %31,845 7044032
A.C. Plant and equipment 20,764,854 A1 438 448 837 20,688,655
Electrical cquipment 28,474,895 SRS, 700 145,952 28,315,603
Hon censamable tems 1,625.073 1,040,425 492,250 2,173,253

Total B56.962.222 62,734,255 25058502 903,737,573
Hel Book Yalue 817630413 B53,197.979

B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

This item consists of the following:

1017 2016
SR. SR,
Qpening balance as at 171 1,379.459 3.664,957
Addition 2,928,332 1,070,264
Impairment ( 37,341 -
Amaortization { 1,018493) [ 855,762)
Closing balance as at 31/i2 5,751,955 3,379459
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MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

{A Saudi Joint Stack Cempany)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED EINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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g  INYENTORIES

This item consists of the fallowing:

Gross [nventory
Frovision for slow moving and
Obsalescence

Mex

Movement of provision for stow moving and obsoleseence:

Opening balance
Add: Provision duning Lhe pericd
Less: Adjustment during the peried

Closing balance

9. ACCOUNT RECFIYABLES

This ilem consists of the following:

Caonsidered Good:
Customess
Provisaan for impairmant
[t CuslOmErs
Mt

Rlated parties 231

Met

Decembar 3, December 31, Jatwary 01,
017 2018 2014
SR 3R SR,
122171172 98,702,194 §2.917,019
(10,727,385 i 8074840} [ 5913,479)
111.449,774 o647, 345 77,004,440
Drecetabar 31, Decembez 3, Tanuary 01,
2017 1016 1016
SR, SE. 3R,
8,054 849 5913478 3,212,968
2,763,024 3,673,264 2,918,720
( 80475 (1531899 ( 21R.209)
10,727,398 5,054,800 5,911,479
December 31, Decembar 31, January OL,
2017 2016 2016
SR, SR, SR
1,374,266.151 1,422 766, 455 1,132.016,156
(005,716 (278302086 ( 25T5RLIZ0D
113,212,435 1133464368 T874434,0%
3,831,363 1,687,368 76,838,955
1.138,043,798 1.146,151,737 901,272,991

[CoEeSa— b
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10, FPREFAYMENTS ANDOTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This item consists of the following:

Advances to staff
Advances ta suppliors
Dreposils
Prepayments

Mkars currant asscts

Taotal

11. TERM LOANS

This items cansisis of the Following:

{slamic banking facilitics
Ministry of Finance
Transfemed to deferred income
Wet — Ministry of Finames

Total

Current portions
Islamic banking Facilitics

Islami¢ banking shott term loans

Minisicy of Finance

Total currend portion

Long term:
Islamic banking facilities
Minislyy of Finance

Total [ang term [oans

‘Toal loans

Decembes 31, December 3, January 01,
1087 16 101
SR, ) 8 Sk,

1.232,027 2,334 (i3 3,2%6,3M
16,232,743 3,903,385 9,962,320
5717, 360 82,117 652,365
14,233,049 19,443,937 L&, 382,506
17,131,273 17,748 837 16,240,037
46,205,941 44 112 282 46,533,532

December 31, December 3, Januwary 01,

017 1016 l0l&
SR 5R. SR

20445869 260027778 98,430,000

88,338,182 | 72,613,182 [ 10,703,182

[ 24882004) 17,394,250} [ 12217,9%0)
63,456,178 55218932 52,575,192
103,402 47 NG 151,025,152
TR, 750,000 132777778 5,010, (4
85,000,000 45, ${H, 000 24, 700,10
9,126,453 5,433,600 5,426,260
172,876,453 136,731,384 95,126,160
76,095,869 TET R0, 000 2,750,000
54,329,725 4%,765,326 47,148,932
131,025,504 128,51 5,326 55,898,932
303,902,047 151,025,192

—_——==. =

115,245,710

‘Ihe loan from the banks are secured throwgh issuz of pramissary notes Frem the company. The Miaistey
of Einance, interest freg loan is securcd by the morigage of land and building of Saudi German Hospital —

Riyadh, Madinah and Hail. The bank loans are priced at SIBOR plus an agreed mark vp.



MIDDELE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2017

11.1
a)

b}

1.2

11.3

1.4

1.5

1.7

The followings are the loans obtained from the Ministry of Finance, KSA!

Finance charges free loan for SGH - Madinah Hospital, this loan wransferred from Bait Al
Battcrjee Medical Co. {a related party} to the Company amounted to SR. 49,838,182 to be
repaid in sixtcen equal annual installments at SR. 3,125,000 starting from 21712 42TH
corresponding to 211172007, The net amount is SR 12,438,132 (SR 15,563,182 for 2016},

Finance charges free 1oan for SGH Riyadh Hospital loan transferred from Bait Al Battejes
and Zoheir Ahmed Al Sibae {a related party) 1o the company amgunted to SR. 18,750,000,
The total amount obtained was SE. 50,000,000 to be repaid in sixteen equal installments of
SR. 3,125,000 each slarted from Safar 15, 1426H cortesponding to March 26, 2005, The
net amounl is 5K, 4,250,000 {SR. 9,375,000 far 2014).

Finance charges free loan to suppon construction of Flospital - National Hail Company for
Healthcare {Subsidiary), the total disbursable amount in (his respect is SR 69,650,000 which
is to be received based on construclion progress to the satisfaction of the Minisiry of
Finance. The payment will start from the year 2018 in 20 equal annual installments. National
Hail Ca, for Healtheare land, building & equipments are montgaged to the Ministry of
Firance. The net amount is SR 69,650,000 (SB. 47,675,000 for 2016).

A medium term Murahba loan for SGH Jeddsh Hospital from Samba SR 20,000,000
received on dated July 14, 2013. The amount is payable in 16 installments equal of SR
1,250,000 the last payable amount is on April 14, 2018. The nct amount is SR 3,750,000
{SK. §, 700,000 for 2016},

A loan amount of SR 25,000,000 is received on March 24, 2016 from Samba Financial
Group against medium term Murabaha financing agreement which is payable in 18
installments equal of SR 1,388,889 the las| payable amount is on September |4, 2017. The
net empunt is SR WL, [ SR 12,500,000 for 2016)

A laan amount of SR 25,000,000 is received on May 17, 2016 from Semba Financial Group
against medium term Murabaha financing agreement which is payeble in 18 installments
equal of SR 1,388,889 the last peyable amount is on November 08, 2017. The net amount
is SR NIL ( SR 15,277,778 for 20146)

A loan amount of 3R 200,000,000 is received on Tuly 24, 2016 from Samba Finaneial Group
against medium term Murebaha financing agreement which is payable in 8 installments
equal of SR 25,000,000 the last payable amounl is on July 24, 2018, The net amount i5 SR
75,004, 004, { SR, 175,000,000 for 2016)

The Company has secured a term facility- [slamic Financing Murabaha- from Samba
Financial Group for part funding the corstruction of hospital project at Dammam,
amounting o SR 300 Million. The loan will be draw down oyer e period of three years
started fram 277122016 and the first repayment in June 2020 and 1ast payment in December
3026, This loan is secured by promissery note from the Company. The net amount is SR
76,695,869 (Balance in 20146 is WIL)

On 27 March 2018, the company secured revoiving Tayseer facility from National
Commercial Bank far an amount of SE 100,000,000, A lean amount of SR 38,000,000 is
drawdown on Stptember 26, 2017 from Naticnal Commercial Bank-NCB a revolving
Tayseer finanging, maturity date is March 25,2018, The net amaunt is SR 30,000,000, { SR
WIL for 2000}

=g
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11.3

119

i2.

13,

A loan amount of SR 30,000,000 received in two transactions one oa 25 October 2017 3R
0,000,000 and second on 23 November 2017 SR 10,000,000/ from Samba Financial Group
against the revolving finance facility. The net amount as on 31 December 2017 SR
30,000,000 ( SR 3,000,000 for 2016)

A loan amount of 58 23,000,000 received on 15 October, 2017 from Alinma Bank against
the revolving finance fzcility. The net emount as on 31 December 2017 SR 25,000,000 (SR
31,000,000 for 2816).

DEFERRED INCOME /GAIN

The movement in govemiment granis are as follows:
December 31, December 31, Janpuary 01,

2017 20146 2016
SR. 5R. 5R.

Opening balance 16,302,619 18,217,991 18,217,901
Accrued during the period B284.145 - -
Transferred to the income stalement { 2,375 968) { 1.915371) -

Closing balance 23,209,797 Tﬁ,'] 02,619 18,217,991

Govemment grants have been received for the purchase of centain items of property, plant and
equipment. There are nio unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached 10 these grants.

EMPLOYEES BENEFITS

This item consists of the following:

December 21,  December 31, January 0,

2017 2014 2014

SR. SR R
Cpening balance — Restated 4.1 161,759,716 144,033,101 144,033,101
Currenl service cost 30,983,132 25711 810 -
Benefit paid { 16336971) [ 10,784,139 -

Actuarial gain recagnized in other

Comprehensive income (OCT) 6, 156024 2,363,068 --
Cither obligations 654,019 435,770 -
Closing balance 183,215,520 161,759,716 144,033,101

The principal assumnptions used for the purpases of the acluarial valuation were as follows:
December 31,  December 3,

2057 2016
Anribution rates B.25% - 5% 0.25% - 5%
Safary increases 3.00% 100%
Diseount Tate 3.85% 1.39%

All movements in the end of service benefits tiability are recognized in profit or [oss except for
the actuarial gain which is recognized in other comptehensive income.
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14, ACCOUNTS PAYBLES, ACCRUED & OTHER LIABILITIES

This item consists ol Lhe following:

December 31, Diecember 31, January 91,
2017 2016 2016
SE. SR. SR,
Accounls payables 212,781,160 242,104,196 198,124,087
accrued & other lfahilities 99,439,391 2,875,462 105,335,404
Due to related parties 233 61,102.613 57,900,346 g.334, 705
{losing balance 173,325,104 382,584,004 311,844,286
15, SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES
This item cansists of the following:
December 34, Decermber 31,
2017 2016
SR 58
Advertisement and marketing 9,054,756 4,081,459
Sales promotion expenses 2,855,398 Y8019
Provision for rejections, discount,
bad and dedbtful dehts 167,094,208 173,506,807
Total 179,004 362 181,309,345
16. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
This item consists af the following:
December 31, December 3h,
2017 2014
5k 331
Salaries, henefits and allowances 178,151,071 160,821 309
Staff accommodation and related expenses 19,341,952 18.951,015
Siaff health insurance expenses 17,942 830 18,948 845
Travelling expenses 24,180,505 23992612
Repair and maintenance 5,797,440 4 481,711
Postage, telephone and intemet 7415321 4.921,534
Security 7,268,169 £917,93%
[nsurance 1,514,686 1,521,924
Audil and consultancy fees 15,893,224 14,841,321
Supplies 11,010,146 7752,127
Director's remuneration 2,522,101 3,037,000
Bank cherges 1,344 545 1,133,664
Diepreciation & amortization 11,367,168 9,147,041
Other expenses 14,787,442 12,212,046
Total 310,537,408 288,702 080
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17,

FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The 8GH Group financial asseis and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, December 31, Japuary 01,
2017 2016 20146
SR 2R R

Cash and bank balances 111,053,895 155,090,776 55,800,375
Account receivables 1,135,043,798  1,146,151,737 801,272,921
Staff advances {included

In other receivables) 1,532.027 2,334,005 3.296,304
Accounts payables 212,783,160 242,104 196 198,124,087
Acerued and other liabilities 160,542,004 140,779,507 113,720,198
Short term loansg 172,876,453 186,731,484 95,126 260
Term loans 131,025,594 128,515,326 55898932
Long term non-current liabilities 40,908,114 20,745,731 2698791

Al the Group's financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortized cost. Leans and
receivables are non-derivalives financial assets carried at amortized cost which generate a fixed
or variable interest income for the Group. The carrying value may be affected by changes in the
credit risk of the counterpartics.

The Group has exposure to the following financial risks from its use of finzncial instruiments:

Credit risk
Ligquidity risk
Moarket risk

This nate presents information ebout the Group's exposure ta gach of the above risks, the Group's
ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing finaneiel risk and the Group's
management of capital. Further quaniitative disclosures are included throughout these financial
stafements,

The Board of Directors has overall respansibility For the establishment and aversight of the
Giroup's risk Management framework and policies. The Group’s risk management pohicies are
established lo identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and 1 monitor risks and adherence ta Jimits. Risk managemeal policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group
through its training and management standards end procedures gims to develop a disciplined and
constructive contro! environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations
with regards tu financial risk management.

The Audit Commitiee pversees how managemenl monitors compliance with the Group's risk
managemnent policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation 1o the risks faced by the Greup. The Audit Committee is assisted in its
oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoe reviews af
risk tnanagement controls and procedures, the resuits of which are reported 1o the Audit
Commillee.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the tisk of financial loss to the Group if a custonier or countérparty 10 a
financial instrument falls to meet its contractual obligations. The Group manages credil risk
in trade debts by limiting significant exposure to the customers not having good credit
histary. Furthermore, the Group has credit pelicy in plece 1o ensure that services are
rendered to customers with an appropriate credit hislory.

The Group is zlso exposed to credit risk from its operating and shor lerm investing
aclivities. The Company's credit risk exposures are calegorized under the following
headings:

Counlerparties

The Group conducts transactions with the following major types of counterparties:

Account receivables

Trade debis are essentially due from Ministry of Health, other government companies /
institutions, insurance companics, private companies, charitable institations and individuals
1o whom the Group is providing medical services. The services are rendered to the
customers as per agreements with respective customers. The credit terms are extended to
custpmer where the Group does not expect any inability to meet their abligations. Trade
debt credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's gstablished policy,
procedures and contrel releting to customer credit risk management. Credit quelity of the
customer is assessed based on an extensive internal credit rating and individual eredit terms
are defined In accordance with this pssessment.

The requirement For an impairment is analysed at each reporting date on an individuat haais
for major clients, Additionally, a large number of minor receivables are grouped inta
homegenous groups end assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to
credit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assels. The
Group does not hold collateral as seeurity. The Group evaluates the caoneentration of risk
with respest 10 trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions
and industries and operate In largely independent markels.

Cash and investrments

The Group limits its exposure to credil risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining
bank sccounts only with counterparties thet have a good eredil rating.

Exposure to credit rlsk

The carrying amount of financial assets represens the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Drecember 31, December 31, January 01,
2017 2016 2016
Sk SR SR
Recejvables — considered goods  1,135,043,79% 1,146.151,737 01,272.991
Sialf advances 1,932,027 2,334,006 3,295,304
Bank balances 108.602,645 152,548 861 53,580,436
Total 1,248 578 470 1,301 034,604

-4
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The maximum exposure ta credit risk for trade debis at the reperting date by type of customer

was:
December 31, December 31, January 01,
2017 10lé 2016
SR SR. SR.

Gavernment inslilutions 5714149873 733 681,954 562,878,284
[nsuranee companies 341,211,479 20,008,086 197,528,154
Cthers 220,851,083 140,774,329 V13,927,598

Total 1.132212,435  1.144,464,369 74,434,036
Relatcd parlies 1831,362 1,687,368 26,838,955

Tetal 1,138,043,797 1,145,151,737 901,272,991

The movement in the allowance for impainment in respect of trade debts during the period
was a5 folfows:

Balance as on Jenuary 1, 2016 257,582,120
Provisions madec during the year 173,506,807
Less: Adjustments made during the year { 152,786 841)
Balence as on December 31,2016 778,302 086
Provisions made during the year 167,094,208
Less: Adjustments made during the year { 205342 378)
Balance as on December 31, 2017 240,053,716

The allowanee account in respect of accounls receivables is used to record impairment losses
where the Group i5 satisfied that recovery of the due amount is daubtful, and when the
amaunt considered imecoverakle it is written off against the financial asset.

The Group belisves that no impairment allowsnce is necassary in respect of lean and
advances, deposils and other financial assets as the recovery of such amounts is possible.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financiat obligations as
they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to mect its linbilities when due, under bath normal
and swressed conditions, without incumring wnaccephable losses or tisking damage to the
Group's reputation. The liquidity position of the Group is manitored by the Board through
budgets, cash flow projections and comparisen with actual resulis. For this purpose, the
Croup has working capital facilitics as raentioned below:

Decennber 31, December 31, Jaouary 01,
2017 016 20146
SR SR. SR.
Total working caplal facilities 195,000,000 95,000,004 95 .000,00:]
Utilized 85,000,000 48,500,000 59,700.040
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These are the total facilities from different bankers of the Group, The Group can avail
different Facilities like lettar of credit, letter of guarantees, revelving (acility at SIBOR +an
agreed mark up These facililies are secured by promissory notes from the company and is
subject to certain financial covenants

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, markup
rates and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of markel risk management is to manage and contrel market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the tetum on risk. The Group is
exposed mark-up rate risk, There is na currency risk as Group is dealing anly in V3D which
is pegged to SR and there is no exchange rale variations.

Foreign currency risk

Exposure to foreign currency risk

Foreign curency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due 1o fransactions
with foreign undertakings and cash in foreign currency bank account.

Saudi Riyal is pegged to USD @ 3.75 therefore the Company™s cxposure to foreign currency
risk is very minimal. The Company manages its Euro balances with regufar maonitoring. The
euro balances are minimal with no significant impact of a change in the conversion rale on
the net profit of the Group.

Market rate risk

The market rate risk is the risk thar the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrumenl
will fuctuate due to changes in the market markup rates and foreign currency risk.
Sensitivity to markup rate risk arises [rom mismatehes of financial assets and liabilities that
mature in a given period. The Group's exposurs to the risk of changes in market mackup
rales relates primarily to Group's long term debt obligations with feating markup rates.

The (roup analyses ils markup tate exposure on & dynamic basis. Various scenarios are
simulated laking into consideralion refinancing, renewal of exisling posirions, alternative
financing. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact en profit and luss of a
defined markup rate shifi. For each simulation, the same markup rale shift is used for all
cutrencies. The scenarios are run only for liabilities that represent the major markup-bearing
positions.
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18.

Profile

The Group's banking facilities are priced at SIBOR plus mark up applicable at the time of

Eranting the facitity and depends on the tenure, preveiling market condition and relevant
credil eisk

Fair value of financial instrumneais

Fair value a3 the price that would be received to zell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement date. The
carrying values of all financial assets and liabililies reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values,

The fair value hierarchy heas not been presented in these financial statements, as the Group
docs not hold any such financial instrument in its portfoelio.

Capital management

Capita! includes equity attributzble to the equity holders of the parent. The Group's
objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability te continug as a
going concern o that it can continue to pravide retarns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain & slrong capital base to support the sustained
development of its business.

The Group manages its capilal struehure and makes adjustments to it in tight of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment ke sharghalders, raturn
capital 1o shareholders or issue new shares. There were no changes to the Group's approach
1o capital manapement during the period.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is erganized into business units based on dheir nature
of business and has three reportable operating segment a3 follows:

Inpatient Services
Qutpatient Services
Pharmacy Sales
Others

Mene other aperating segments have been aggregaled to form the above reporiable
operating segmeits.

Sale of Medical Equipment and Hospital Management Services have been apgregaled in
Others for the purpase of reconciliation. The two segments do not meet the criteria of
operaling segment reporting even aggregated further their naure ofbusiness and economic
environments are different to each other.
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MIDDLE EAST HEALTHCARE COMPANY (MEAHCO)

(A Saud: Joint Stock Company)
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 207

Management manitors the operaling results of its aperaling sepments separately for the purpose of performance
asgessment Segment performance is evaluated based on cperating profit ar Ioss and is measared consistently
with operaling profit or 1oss in the consolidated financial statemenis.

December 3, 2017

In Palient Qut Patlent Fharmacy
Servicey Services Sales Dihers Total
SE. SR SE. SR SR
Revenue 2i1,B91 .07 416,293,242 1BV 766,932  17378,359 1,629,42%.607
Salaries (2716,425452) (131,512,397 (4,305,298) - (412,543,647}
Consumnables (15.929.350) (35,197,887) (2049822320 (576,819 (315,686,200
D preciation (45,1%9,459) (20,103,347 151.553) - (65,354,859
rher direct cost {45,368, 2409 (21,969,217 {2,600,031) ” (69.937.450)
Cost of Revenue {442,922,503) (20%.083,549) (211,933.416)  (576H19) {864,522 186}
Gross Profit 468,968,571 207,309,694 75,827,516 16,801,540 764907321
General & sdministrative {310,537 408}
Selling and distribution {179,004, 362)
Met Profil for 3¢gmenl 175,365,551
Zakal {%,465,234)
1/nallocated Expenses/Tncome
Finance charges UL 37126
Other Income 15,050,519
Profi for the year 171,961,730
| Decempber 31, 2016
In Balicnt Out Fatient Fharmacy
Services Services Eales Others Total
1.8 SR SR SR SR
Revenue 916,442,991 1662 iie 280,763,359 _20,772,689 1,615,644,155
Salaries {250,554, 542) (11 504,986) (3,506, 388) {365,965 %26)
Consumables (69,287.176; (30,655,968] (202440,446) {3,323,193) {305, 106,78 1)
[ preciation (38,288,757 (16, 127,113) {27,108) (54,442,974}
Otber direel cost (40,265 2659) {19,081,787) {1,789, 2261 {61 140,282}
Cost of Bevenue {194,399, 744) [137,363,862) {108, t6} LES) (3313150 (187,255,965)
Grass Proflt 518,043,247 220,132,154 72,600,133 17,449,496 8218, 38% 150
General & administralive (288,702,089
Selling and distribution {18L305.345)
Met Profil for Segment 356,371,756
Zakal { 3,99T7.222)
Unallocated Expensenincome
Finance charges (13,242,668

Oither Indome
Profit far the year

18,336,504

353,490,437
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CAPITAL

The authorized, issued and paid-up capital of the Company is SR 920,400,000 divided into
92,040,000 equal shares at SR. {10} each.

On December 30, 2015 the company obtained approval from Capital Market Authority
(“CWA") to offer 27,612,000 shares representing 30% of the company’s share capital in an
Initial Publtic Offering end these shares were offcred to the public.  Accordingly the
sharcholders ditubed their shareholding to the extent of 30%. The company shares are listed
in the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) on dMarch 25, 2016,

STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Regulalions for Companies in Saudi Arabia, the Company ¢stablishes
a statutary reserve by the approptiation of 103 of net income until the reserve equals 36%
of the share capital. This resecve (s not available for dividend distribution.

NON- CONTROLLING INTERESTS

This item represents 67.67%% shareholding by other shareholders in Nalional Hail Company
for Healthcare Co. and the Company holds 32.33% shares.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Eamings per share from the continuing main oparations are computed by dividing net profit
excluding other income for the year by the weighted average number of shares cutstanding
during the year.

RELATED FARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dring the period, the Company transacied with fallowing relaled parties:

ame Eclationship
Bait Al Baterjee Medicel Company Holding Company
Bail Al Batierjee Medical College for Sciences and Technalogy Affiliate
Intemational Hospitat Construction Compriy Affiliate
Bait Al Baiterjea Company for Educalion and Training Affliale
Bait Al Batterjee Pharmaceutical Company Affiliste
Bait Al Batterjee Company for Fitness Affiliate
Abdul Jatil Khalid Batterjee Medical Instrumentation
Maintenance Company Affiliate
Gulf Youth Company for Investment and Real Estate Affilinte
Crevelopment (JAN-PRO) Affiliate
Emirate Healthcare Development Company Affiliate

~§9-
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17,

Fi.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board of Direclor's at their meeting hald oo March 02, 2017 (G) camresponding o
03/06/1438 (H) proposed a cash dividend of SR. 2 per share amounting lo SR 184.02 Millian
for the year ended December 31,2016 which was aubsequently approved by the sharehelders
in the Genecal Assenmbly Meeting held on June 08, 2017 (G) corresponding to 13/09/1428
(H}.

CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

i) TheCompany hasthe capital commitments of SR. 280,823,013 towards hospital project
in Dammam as on December 31, 2017,

iy The Company has given bank guarantees amounting te SR. 4,917,370 as on December
31, 2017 (SR. 5,117,370 for the y=ar 2016}.

FTAKAT

General Authority for Zakat & Tax ((GAZT) vide approval letter dated 6/11/1437H
conesponding to 3/8/2016G has granted exernption from paying income lax on the share of
profits of [ntemationat Finance Corporation (IFC) the foreign shareholder in MEAHCO.
Accordingly, the company is not required to pay income tax from the year 2016 cnwards on
the share of [FC peofit. An amount of SAR 13,552,448 income tax paid earlier has been
credited to equity account and considered as advance paid to GAZIT which will be adjusted
from future zakat & tax Rability of the company.

a) Zakat due for the company for the year 2017 is 5,394,405 and (Zakat & Tax SR
3529342 for the year 2014).

b) Zakat for subsidiary for 2016 is SR 70,829 {SR. 47,360 for the year 2014},

¢} Zaket assessment for the years 2005 to 2016 are under process and company obtained
temportary Facility tetter for the year 2016.

COMPARATIVE FIGURS

Certain amounts of prior years have been reclassified to conform to the cument year
presentation as per Intemational Financial Beporting Standards.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AFFROVAL

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Company s Board of Dircctors
an Rajab 9, 1435{H) camresponding te March 26, 201 8{(G).
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